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In the Middle Ages leprosy seems to have found good conditions 
for its r:;pread in wcr:; tern N o)'way. Our knowledge of leprosy in Norway 
after that time is attached mainly to the history of Bergen, located in 
the CC'lltel' of the "western Norwegian coast and at that time the bigges t 
Norwegian town, and to the" leper hospitals" there. 

After a big fire in Bergen in 1248, King Haakon Haakonson rebuilt 
some of the burnt churches. Among these were All-Saints' Church 
(Allehelgenskil'ken), which he decided should be attached to a hospital 
(Ospitale paupel'um apud omnes sanctos ), and St. Catherine's church, 
which was to be joined to a hospital for leprosy (Ospitale sancte 
Catherine leprosorum). vVe do not know for how long patients with 
leprosy were r eceived in these two hospitals. All-Saints' Hospital 
(Allehelgenshospitalet) fell into decay, and the chur<,:h was demolished 
in 1552. Now the name All-Saints' Street (A]]ehelgensgaten) remains 
as a memorial. 

St. Catherine's hospital was mentioned as late as the 16th century 
as a "leper hospital," but at the end of that century it was taken over 
by "The Office" (Det Bergenske Contoir), i.e., that part of Bergen 
inhabited by the Hanseatic merchants. 

Of all the known Norwegian hospitals for leprosy, the hospital 
called St. J oergen 's hospital (St. George's hospital) in Bergen gives us 
the most comprehensive information. It is mentioned for the first time 
in a will of 1411, and was apparently established by the so-called 
Antonius brother s. As a result of the fires that have devastated the 
wooden residences in Bergen throughout the ages, St. J oergen 's hos­
pital has several times disappeared in flames, but it has been rebuilt 
each time on the same site. In 1701 the hospital was demolished and a 
new building was constructed, because the old building was scattered 
and too small. A year later a big fire broke out in Bergen, and St. 
Joergen's hospital was again laid in ashes. It was again rebuilt, how­
ever, but so badly that in 1745 it was necessary to make considerable 
alterations. 

These old buildings and the adjacent wooden church still exist in 
Bergen. The hospital is built as a quadrangle with the church on the 
eastern side of the courtyard, the hospital buildings in the southern 
part, the chaplain 's house in the northern, and the outbuildings on the 
left side. The largest hospital building, a two story structure, 140 feet 
long, 32 feet wide, and 16 feet high, forms the southern side of the court-
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yard. '.rhere are two kitchens in 1he center of this huilding, and on hoth 
sides of these are working rooms which also functioned as living and 
dining rooms. Both room s go through the two floors with a gallery 
running around the walls. Surrounding these two rooms are several 
small cell s that served as sleeping apartments and depositories for food 
and clothes. In the largest wing on the 'eastern side, between the 
kitchens and the church, there a re 40 cells on the ground floor and in the 
gallery ; in the other wing there are 16 cells. The cells are all of the 
same size, measuring not more than 8 x 6 x 7 feet. Each has its own 
entl'allCe from the work room, and a small window in the opposite wall. 
The cells had a bed on each s ide with a narrow gangway between. They 
were not heated, but there were stoves in the work rooms. 

It is clear that the leprosy patients lived under poor conditions in 
their humble walk of life. In a publication dated 1816 the chaplain 
called it a graveyard for the living. In 1817, for the first time, a physi­
cian was attached to the hospital, but true reforms did not occur until 
1839, when Daniel Cornelius Danielssen (1815-1894) started his scien­
tific investigations in this hospital. 

In 1840 the professor of dermatology at the Univer sity of Christi­
ania (110W Oslo), Carl 'Wilhelm Boeck (1808-1875), obtained a travel 
grallt from the Norwegian government to study leprosy and develop 
preventive measures against this disease. On his first trip he went to 
Bergen, where he and Danielssen decided to collaborate in studying 
leprosy at St. J oergen 's hospital and to prepare the opus that .vas to 
form the great turning point in our knowledge of leprosy. In 1847 they 
published the celebrated work "Om Spedalskhed" (On Leprosy) , which 
led Bergen to be regarded for many years as the European center for 
leprosy r esearch. A year later a French edition was published in Paris. 
The work "Om Spedalskhec1" was accompanied by a large atlas of 
paintings of leprosy cases. A century later , in 1948, de Souza-Araujo 
of Rio de Janeiro published a facsimile r eproduction of this atlas, stat­
ing in the preface that he wished to "rendre un hommage au Gouverne­
men t de N orwege, que a ete ]e premier dans Ie monde a r,ealiser une 
prophylaxie scientifique et humaine de la lepre, et aux vrais fondateurs 
de ]a moderne leprologie, les tres illush'es norvegiens Danielssen et 
Boeck. " 

In the 1830 's anc11840 's there was a considerable increase in per ­
sons afflicted with leprosy in Norway. They were confined chiefly to the 
coas tal di stricts and were particularly numerous around Bergen. This 
increase in the number caused the authorities to feel it necessary to 
start precautions against furthe'r spread of the disease. 

In 1845 the Norwegian Parliament voted to build a new hospital 
for leprosy in Bergen, and in 1849 the Lungegaarden hospital was 
opened for thi s purpose. Although Danielssen continued as physician 
at St. J oergen 's hospital, he was appointed as chief physician at the 






